
 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Posting with Agenda 

 

This Agenda has been prepared in advance and represents a listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be discussed 

at the meeting. However the agenda does not necessarily include all matters which may be taken up at this meeting. 
 

Page | 1 

2018-07-16 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      RMLD Citizens Advisory Board             
 

Date:  2023-03-23 Time:  6:00 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Municipal Light Building Location:  Winfred Spurr Audio Visual Room 

 

Address:  230 Ash Street Agenda:                       

 

Purpose:  General Business 
 

Meeting Called By: Vivek Soni, Chair 
 

Notices and agendas are to be posted 48 hours in advance of the meetings excluding 

Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays. Please keep in mind the Town Clerk’s hours of 

operation and make necessary arrangements to be sure your posting is made in an 

adequate amount of time. A listing of topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be 

discussed at the meeting must be on the agenda. 

 
All Meeting Postings must be submitted in typed format; handwritten notices will not be accepted. 

 

Topics of Discussion: 

 
On July 16, 2022, Governor Baker signed into law An Act Relative to Extending Certain State of 

Emergency Accommodations, which, among other things, extends the expiration of the provisions 
pertaining to the Open Meeting Law to March 31, 2023.  

 
THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD IN PERSON AND REMOTELY VIA ZOOM.  

 
For remote participation via Zoom please email emorse@rmld.com. If possible, request the Zoom link 

in advance of the meeting. Include your full name and address. Comments and questions will be 
monitored during the meeting. 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order – V. Soni, Chair 

 

2. Approval of Minutes – V. Soni, Chair 

Suggested Motion:  Move that the Citizens’ Advisory Board approve the minutes of the 

July 28, 2022, meeting as written. 

 

3. Integrated Resources Report – G. Phipps, General Manager  

 

 Suggested Motion:  Move that the Citizens’ Advisory Board recommend that the Board 

of Commissioners vote to accept the General Manager’s recommendation to execute a 

contract with Gravity Renewables for energy, including associated certificates, from 

Gravity CT #5 and Aspinook Wyre Wynd hydro facilities, contingent on appropriate 

environmental due diligence. 

 

4. General Manager’s Report – G. Phipps, General Manager 

 

5.  Scheduling – V. Soni, Chair 

 

6. Adjournment – V. Soni, Chair 

 Suggested Motion:  Move that the Citizens’ Advisory Board adjourn regular session. 



Attachment 1

Agenda Item 2:  Approval of Minutes



 
Town of Reading 

Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      RMLD Citizens Advisory Board             
 

Date:  2022-07-28 Time:  6:00 PM      

 

Building:  Reading Municipal Light Building Location:  Winfred Spurr Audio Visual Room 

 

Address:  230 Ash Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  General Business Version:                       
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Remote Participants:  Mr. Jason Small, Chair (North Reading); Mr. Vivek 

Soni, Vice Chair (Reading); Mr. Dennis Kelley (Wilmington); Mr. Ken Welter 

(Lynnfield) 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

Mr. George Hooper, Wilmington 
 

Others Present: 
 

Staff:  Mr. Gregory Phipps, Ms. Julie Blackley, Ms. Kathleen Rybak 

Others:  Ms. Marlena Bita, RMLD Board of Commissioners  

Remote Participants: Mr. Christopher Haley, Reading Select Board CAB 

Liaison  
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Jason Small, Chair 
 

 

Topics of Discussion: 
 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order – J. Small, Chair 
 

Chair Small called the meeting of the Citizens’ Advisory Board to order at 6:00 PM and noted 

the meeting was being audio recorded. Chair Small asked all members present (in 

person and remotely) to state their names. 

 
 2. Interim General Manager’s Report – G. Phipps, Interim General Manager 
 

Talent Acquisition and Talent Management:  Mr. Phipps provided a staffing update, noting three 
upcoming retirements:  Mr. Leo Keefe, Ms. Maureen McHugh, and Mr. Charles Underhill.  Mr. 
Phipps expressed appreciation for their contributions to RMLD.  Mr. Phipps then reviewed the 
ongoing recruitment efforts and progress on filling current vacancies including engineering, line 
operations, Director of IT, Senior Network and Security Engineer, Director of Finance, and a new 
Human Resources position.   
 
Flex Time Pilot:  Mr. Phipps reported that RMLD began a flex-time pilot in early July; the pilot 
does not currently include line workers. There is a mix of different schedules with variability in 
terms of start and end times (four ten-hour days, four nine-hour days with a half day on Friday, 
or the more traditional five eight-hour days).   Currently, the pilot is scheduled to end on 
September 2nd and will be re-evaluate then.    The customer service window is open later each 
day (with extended hours on Thursday night) and closed on Fridays.   

  



 

Page | 2 

 
3.   Communications Update – J. Blackley Communications Manager 
 Materials:  Communications Update, presentation slides dated July 28, 2022 
 

Ms. Blackley, the new Communications Manager, provided a review of initiatives currently 
underway including a Social Media Revival (Slide 2). Ms. Blackley noted the RMLD Facebook 
page had been dormant for five years and the Twitter page was being used sparingly for outage 
updates.  Staff has begun posting to promote RMLD programs and events; the hope is that 
continual postings will help with organic growth on these social media platforms.   Ms. Blackley 
then reported that RMLD will be sending hand-signed “New Customer Welcome Letters” as 
outlined on Slide 3.  Currently, RMLD reaches out to new customers each month, with an email 
which is very “link heavy” that provides information about RMLD programs.  These letters are an 
opportunity to provide more personalized communication.  Ms. Blackley then reviewed Ongoing 
Efforts (Slide 4).    
 

4. Hydro Quebec Phase 1/Phase II Converter – G. Phipps, Interim General Manager 
 Materials:  HQ Phase I/Phase II Converter presentation slides dated July 28, 2022  
 

Mr. Phipps provided a general overview of the Hydro Quebec (HQ) PhaseI/Phase II Converter 
(Slide 2), which is a high voltage transmission line that comes from Canada down to New 
England (into Massachusetts).   With Phase II, Hydro Quebec increased the capacity up to 2,000 
megawatts.  RMLD has rights to 9.4 MW of that capacity but does not actually use the asset to 
receive power.   RMLD sells the use rights to other US entities (including National Grid and 
Eversource) and receives dividends (~$550,000) for RMLD’s equity share.   As rights owners 
(equity share owners), RMLD also incurs costs to maintain the asset (~$150,000 per year).   The 
net/net to RMLD is approximately $400,000 per year which directly offsets RMLD’s power 
supply costs. 
 
Mr. Phipps then reviewed the History (Slide 3) of RMLD’s interest in the project.  RMLD has 
maintained (as part of a coalition with other MLP’s) an interest in Hydro Quebec since day one.  
RMLD’s total entitlement to the Hydro Quebec Phase I/Phase II is 9.4 megawatts.  The minimum 
(combined) commitment to do a joint purchase (with the other MLPs/equity holders) is 
approximately 100 megawatts.  Mr. Phipps noted there may also be an opportunity to take 
advantage of flow rights, which RMLD is investigating; if successful, those flow rights would start 
in January of 2024.   
 
Moving to Slide 4: Going Forward, Mr. Phipps noted Hydro Quebec is an important part of 
RMLD’ s portfolio because it is non-carbon; the vast majority is hydro and a small portion is 
nuclear.  However, currently there are no certificates linked to Hydro Quebec.  A small group will 
be working with the state, MMWEC, and ENE to figure out a mechanism for Massachusetts to 
put in place some sort of (non-carbon) certificate recognition for the power coming down from 
Hydro Quebec.   RMLD is interested in purchasing power; it is dispatchable, and it is stable 
power, which is critically important for RMLD.   RMLD has begun working (through ENE) with 
individuals on the Canadian side to secure power purchase agreements.   
 
Mr. Phipps reported that current going-forward options (unless something changes 
dramatically) is to maintain our rights and to the extent those rights if the opportunity presents 
itself (i.e., other entities want to sell their rights).   
 
Moving to Slide 5:  Key Actions, Mr. Phipps noted RMLD would like to secure as much of the 
rights to the Hydro Quebec resource as possible and to get into a supply agreement in 
preparation for our ability to use the line starting in January of 2024.  There are already 
international agreements between Hydro Quebec and US entities, but it will be unique for RMLD 



 

Page | 3 

to source power internationally, as far as Canada is concerned.  Mr. Phipps asked if there were 
any questions. 
 
Mr. Soni reiterated that the project has been around for a while and RMLD has been an owner 
of part of a project but has not received power from the project.  Mr. Phipps responded that 
was correct.   Instead of RMLD using the asset to receive power, RMLD currently sells those 
rights; RMLD is in the third 20-year extension in terms of participating.  In the past RMLD has not 
needed access to the power, but benefited from keeping the rights and it has been a positive 
financial gain.    
 
Mr. Soni asked about timing issues; timing to get power from them, and then there’s the timing 
for that power to be considered non-carbon.  Are they two separate timelines?    Mr. Phipps 
responded that there were two separate timelines.  RMLD flow rights would not (potentially) 
start until (at the earliest) January 2024, and RMLD would need to have a contract with Hydro 
Quebec on the generation side to actually use the power through that transmission line.   Hydro 
Quebec is a transmission facility not a generation facility; but they do own generation assets in 
Canada that are typically tied to this transmission line.  That is the first piece.   
 
The short-term timeline is for RMLD to get flow rights and then determine if we can use our 9.4 
megawatts equity share (without being part of the 100-megawatt coalition).   Then for whatever 
power that comes down, there is interest in having certificates tied to it.  For RMLD that does 
not need to take place until 2030; RMLD’s portfolio is already in good shape to meet the 2030 
target of 50% of sales being non-carbon with the contracts we currently have in place.  From a 
pricing standpoint, it is expected that Hydro Quebec will be looking for the non-carbon 
premium.  What those numbers will be is not known, but generally speaking it is expected to be 
an affordable, reliable, stable, and non-carbon source of energy.   
 
The group continued a discussion of the Hydro Quebec project relative to generation, 
transmission, bringing the transmission lines into the United States through the northern states, 
and availability of certificates, as well as additional initiatives that the RMLD will be exploring to 
meet the Climate Law regulations.     
 

5. Reading Town Website:  CAB Member Communication – G. Phipps, Interim General Manager  
 

Mr. Phipps reported that the Town of Reading website includes contact forms with links (on all 
board pages) to allow the public to contact individual board members; an email would be 
generated automatically to the email address associated (linked) with that board member.  The 
question for the CAB is what mechanism should be used to allow public contact to CAB 
members through the Town website.   CAB members noted that they had received a 
communication from the Town Clerk relative to this request.   The group discussed various 
options.    
 
Mr. Phipps summarized the preference as follows:  The Executive Assistant’s email to be linked 
to all public inquiries directed to CAB members.  An RMLD email address with a password will be 
created for each CAB member.  The Executive Assistant will forward public inquiries to the 
individual CAB member(s) at their RMLD email address and notify the appropriate CAB 
member(s) when they have received an email.  The CAB member could then respond through 
the RMLD email.  Mr. Phipps noted no vote was necessary, but that he would take that as action 
item. 

  



 

Page | 4 

 
6. Scheduling – J. Small, Chair 
 

Chair Small noted that an update from the General Manager Selection Committee was not 
included on the Agenda because the Committee had not yet met due to scheduling difficulties.    
CAB meetings were scheduled for September 15th at 6:00 PM (prior to the BOC meeting); 
October 13th at 6:00 pm.  The October meeting will be the annual budget review to be held 
outside of Reading at a location to be determined; November 17th at 6:00 PM; and December 
22nd at 6:00 PM.   Coverage for the Board of Commissioners meeting was set as follows: 
September 15th, Mr. Welter; October 20th, Mr. Soni; November 17th, Mr. Kelley; and 
December 22nd, Chair Small.   
 

7. Motion to Adjourn – J. Small, Chair 
 

Mr. Soni made a motion to adjourn. Mr. Kelley seconded the motion.  Motion carried, 4:0:1 (4 in 
favor, 0 opposed, 1 absent) by roll call vote of those present:  Mr. Soni, aye; Mr. Kelley, aye; Mr. 
Welter, aye; Chair Small, aye.  

 

The CAB meeting adjourned at 7:00 PM. 

 

 

As approved on ________. 

 

 



Attachment 2

Agenda Item 3:  Integrated Resources Report



Integrated Resources Report 

Presented to the 
Citizens' Advisory Board

23 March 2023



Outline

IRD Key Drivers

IRD Organization 

RMLD Integrated Resource Planning

Hydro Addition to Power Supply (motion)

3Q 2022 Certificates



Integrated Resource Division Key Drivers

Market RMLD Customers

Reliable Seek supply-
demand balance

Invest in 
infrastructure (and 
data analytics)

Incent desired 
behaviors of energy 
use

Low Cost Relentlessly seek 
least cost resources

Build team out to 
fully evaluate and 
structure contracts

Manage impacts of 
increasing 
electrification by 
customers

Non-Carbon Aggressively pursue 
non-carbon PPA's

Maximize potential 
non-carbon 
generation in 
territory

Work with 
customers to 
maximize non 
carbon distributed 
generationCAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-23



IRD Organization

IRD Director

IRD Engineer IRD Engineer IRD Analyst 
(Open)

IRD Analyst
(Open)

IRD Specialist IRD Specialist IRD Specialist

Customer 
Service (6)

IRD 
Operational 

Assistant
Communications

BoC CAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-23



RMLD Integrated Resource Planning

Forecasting

Energy Efficiency & 
Electrification

Customer 
Engagement

Rate Innovation

Certificate 
Management

Secure Supply 
Resources

RELIABLE

LOW COST

NON-CARBON

CAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-23



Hydro Renewal – Gravity
Renewing and combining two Gravity hydro contracts (Wyre Wynd (contracted) and Gravity CT (MOU))

100% of output and environmental attributes of both facilities – minimize admin complexity for both parties

Gravity CT environmental justice complete; Wyre Wynd will be scheduled given renewal

Wyre Wynd requires fish passages for FERC license renewal (license receipt expected 2023)

Although both facilities are in CT, separate watersheds (supply rivers) to reduce risk

Volume –combined ~35,000 MWh/yr for RMLD (~5% RMLD total 2024 purchases; ~25,000 MWh/yr from CT plus ~10,000 MWh/yr
from Wyre Wynd); RMLD takes all output of both facilities (no change) 

Term - 32 years (2023 – 2055)

Certificates – CT Class I certificates (renewable and non-carbon) 

Pricing - slightly above RMLD hydro portfolio; 80% higher than RMLD portfolio average; 2% escalator 

Source: Energy Position Graph MASTER 2023-01-10; Gravity discussions and offer materials hydro motion
CAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-23 



7

3Q 2022 Certificates – quarterly report

55,000 certificates acquired in 3Q22 
• volume stability because certificates are 

contracted with non-carbon generation
• minted Jan 15, 2023

Retiring 26% of quarterly retail sales
• all EFECs plus several Maine Class 2’s
• Volume up because of increased load related to 

weather

Selling 80% of certificates above 26%
• lower % sold now to leave higher bank to ensure 

year-end compliance (sell later if not retired)
• ~$130,000 from 3Q22 certificate sales

Less generation from Hydro assets in Q3
• Higher load due to summer temperatures

Source: 2021-2023 RMLD certificate tracking

3,616



Thank You
from the IRD Team

CAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-15-23


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	CAB RMLD IRD 2023-03-23.pdf
	Integrated Resources Report �
	��IRD Key Drivers�IRD Organization �RMLD Integrated Resource Planning�Hydro Addition to Power Supply (motion)�3Q 2022 Certificates��
	Integrated Resource Division Key Drivers
	IRD Organization
	RMLD Integrated Resource Planning
	Hydro Renewal – Gravity
	3Q 2022 Certificates – quarterly report
	Thank You�from the IRD Team




